NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Gretchen G. Bennitt, APCO

Headquarters Northern Field Office

200 Litton Drive, Ste. 320 257 E. Sierra Street, Suite E

Grass Valley, CA 95945 Portola, CA 96122

(530) 274-9360/ FAX: (530) 274-7546 (530)832-0102 FAX:(530) 832-0101
NORTHERN SIERRA

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MONDAY

January 28, 2019
1:00 p.m.

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



Al

NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
January 28, 2019
1:00 p.m.

This meeting will be held by videoconference/teleconference at the

following locations:

(Site A) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Headquarters)
200 Litton Drive, Conference Room 316
Grass Valley, California

(Site B) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Northern Office)

257 E. Sierra Street, Unit E
Portola, California
(Site C) TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
10879A Donner Pass Road, CONFERENCE ROOM
Truckee, California

| items on the agenda may be acted upon by the Board of Directors. No action will be

taken nor discussion held at the meeting on business not appearing on the posted
agenda.

Iv.

Standing Orders:
Call to Order.
Roll call and determination of quorum.

Public Comment: Foritems NOT appearing on the agenda and within the
jurisdiction of the Board. The public may comment on Agenda items as they are
discussed.

Administrative Report

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair for 2019

Calendar for 2019

Approval of regular meeting minutes — October 22, 2018

Authorization for Signing Nevada County Auditor Controller's Warrant
Request Signatures for 2018

Solicitation for Application to Receive Funding From the Carl Moyer Memorial
Program (Fiscal Year 2018/2019 - Year 21) Funds

F. Monthly Budget Report — December 2018

m OOwm»

Director’s Report
A. Status on Portola PM2.5 Nonattainment Area
B. EPA’s Notice of Proposed Rulemaking for Portola PM2.5 Attainment Plan

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD O DIRECTOR'S MEETING

Rule 318 — American Valley Burning Restrictions

The State of California Department of Justice Office of the Attorney General and
the Fair Political Practices Commission Ethics Training

Conflict of Interest Forms (FPPC) DUE MARCH 15t

Goals and Objectives - 2019

. District Accomplishments - 2018

@mm OO

V. Closed Session
A. Closed Session Item - Performance Evaluation of the Air Pollution Control
Officer, Gretchen Bennitt (Government Code Section 54957).

VI.  Concerns of Board - The Board may at this time bring up matters it wishes to
discuss at the next Board Meeting, as long as no discussions are conducted and no
actions are taken, in compliance with the Brown Act.

VIIl.  Schedule next Meeting — February 26, 2018 — Videoconference/T elephone

Vill. Adjournment

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND STERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

PERSONS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted by the Chairperson in a manner
consistent with the policies of the District. The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Revised
shall also be used as a general guideline for meeting protocol. District policies shall prevail
whenever they are in conflict with Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.
All Board meetings shall commence at the time stated on the agenda and shall be guided by
same.

PUBLIC COMMENT:
Provisions for permitting any individual or group to address the Board concerning any
item on the agenda of a special meeting, or to address the Board at a regular meeting
on any subject that lies within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors, shall be as
follows:

Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of fifteen (15)
minutes to each subject matter;

No boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in
boisterous conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the Chairperson, of
that person's privilege of address.

No oral presentation shall include charges or complaints against any District employee,
regardless of whether or not the employee is identified in the presentation by name or by
another reference which tends to identify. All charges or complaints against employees
shall be submitted to the Board of Directors under provisions contained in District Policy
1030.

Willful disruption of any of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall not be permitted.
If the Chairperson finds that there is in fact willful disruption of any meeting of the Board,
he/she may order the room cleared and subsequently conduct the Board's business
without the audience present. In such an event, only matters appearing on the agenda
may be considered in such a session.

After clearing the room, the Chairperson may permit those persons who, in his/her
opinion, were not responsible for the willful disruption to re-enter the meeting room.

Duly accredited representatives of the news media, whom the Chairperson finds not to
have participated in the disruption, shall be admitted to the remainder of the meeting.

Members of the public are given the opportunity to address the Board of Directors
directly at each teleconference
location.

POSTING AGENDA:

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours prior to the regular meeting at the following locations:
Eric Rood Government Center in Nevada City, The Plumas County Courthouse in Quincy, the
Litton Building in Grass Valley, the Plumas County Board of Supervisors Chambers in Quincy,
Sierra County Courthouse Square in Downieville. The agenda and board packet are
available on-line prior to the Board Meeting at www.myairdistrict.com

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRFCTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda Iltem: lILA

Agenda Description: Election of Chair and Vice-Chair for 2019

Issues: In accordance with District Policy # 4040, the Board Chair and Vice Chair rotate
from county to county on an annual basis. The Board Chair and Vice Chair are from the

same county. Itis Nevada County’s turn.

Requested Action:
Nominate and Elect the Chair and Vice Chair

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:
none

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda Item: IIl.B
Agenda Description: Proposed Calendar for 2019

Issues: The schedule for 2019 is being presented for review, discussion and adoption.
The Board meeting in July will be cancelled unless a need arises.

Requested Action:
1. Discuss and approve the calendar

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:
1. Board Meeting Schedule for 2019

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Gretchen Bennitt, Executive Director

DISTRICT HEADQUARTERS NORTHERN FIELD OFFICE
257 E. Sierra, Unit E
200 Litton Drive, Suite 320 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2227
Grass Valley, CA 95945 Portola, CA 96122
(530) 274-9360 / FAX: (530) 274-7546 (530) 832-0102 / FAX: (530) 832-0101
email: office @ myairdistrict.com or www.mvyairdistrict.com email: julie @ myairdistrict.com or www.myairdistrict.com

AIR QUALITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2019
The Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors meetings are scheduled on
the fourth Monday of every month at 1:00 P.M. on the date and places listed below:

DATE LOCATION

January 28 Video/Teleconference ~ Grass Valley and Portola
February 25 Video/Teleconference - Grass Valley and Portola
March 25 Video/Teleconference - Grass Valley and Portola
April 22 Video/Teleconference - Grass Valley and Portola
May 27 Video/Teleconference - Grass Valley and Portola
June 24 NON-Video Conference - To Be Determined
*July 22 Video Conference - Grass Valley and Portola
August 26 Video/Teleconference - Grass Valley and Portola
September 23 Video/Teleconference ~ Grass Valley and Portola
October 28 Video/Teleconference - Grass Valley and Portola
November 25 Video/Teleconference — Grass Valley and Portola
**December 23 Video/Teleconference — Grass Valley and Portola

* The July 22, 2019 meeting will be cancelled unless an urgent need arises.
** The December 23, 2019 meeting will be cancelled due to the Holiday.

VIDEO CONFERENCE LOCATIONS

Grass Valley: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Headquarters, Room 316, 200 Litton
Drive, Grass Valley, CA 95945

Portola: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Northern Field Office, 257 E. Sierra, Unit E,
Portola, CA 96122

NON-VIDEQ CONFERENCE LOCATION

Calpine: Eastern Sierra County Recreation Center, 104 County Road, Calpine, CA 96124

Loyalton: Loyalton Social Hall, 105 Beckwith, Loyalton, CA 96118

Portola: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Northern Field Office, 257 E. Sierra, Unit E,
Portola, CA 96122

Grass Valley: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Headquarters, Room 316, 200 Litton
Drive, Grass Valley, CA 95945

Updated 1/28/19

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMIENT DISTRICT BOARD OI DIRECTOR'S MELTING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda ltem: lIl.C

Agenda Description: Approval of regular meeting minutes — October 22, 2018

Issues:
The Minutes are attached for Board review/comment/approval.

Requested Action:

1. Approval of Regular meeting minutes from October 22, 2018

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:
1. Draft meeting minutes from October 22, 2018

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA. PLUMAS AND SIERRA



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Gretchen Bennitt, Executive Director

DISTRICT HEADQUARTERS NORTHERN FIELD OFFICE

200 Litton Drive, Suite 320 257 E. Sierra, Unit £

Mailing Address: Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2227

Grass Valley, CA 95945 Portola, CA 96122

(530) 274-9360 / FAX: (530) 274-7546 (530) 832-0102 / FAX: (530) 832-0101

email: office @ myairdistrict.com or www.myairdistrict.com email: Julie@myairdistrict.com or www.mvairdistrict.com
MINUTES

NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
October 22, 2018
1:00 p.m.

(Site A) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Headquarters)
200 Litton Drive, Conference Room 316
Grass Valley, California

(Site B) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Northern Office)

257 E. Sierra Street, Unit E
Portola, California
(Site C) TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
10879A Donner Pass Road, CONFERENCE ROOM
Truckee, California

Members Present: Members Absent:
Supervisor Sanchez, Chair None

Supervisor Thrall, Vice Chair
Supervisor Roen

Supervisor Huebner
Supervisor Scofield
Supervisor Anderson

L Standing Orders:
Call to Order. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum.
Chair Sanchez called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. A guorum was confirmed.
Gretchen Bennitt, APCO; Julie Ruiz, APCSII, Sam Longmire, APCSIII were also in
attendance.

. Public Comment: For ltems NOT Appearing on the Agenda and Within the
Jurisdiction of the Board. The Public May Comment on Agenda Items As They

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA



Are Discussed. Both Teleconference Sites are Allowed an Opportunity for
Public Comment.
Chair Sanchez called for public comment. There was no public present.

lll. Consent Calendar These ltems Are Expected to Be Routine and Noncontroversial. They
Will Be Acted on By the Board at One Time Without Discussion. Any Board Member, Staff
Member, or Interested Party May Request That an ltem Be Removed From the Consent
Calendar for Discussion.

A. Approval of regular meeting minutes — September 22, 2018

There was a motion to approve the consent calendar by Supetvisor Scofield.
Supervisor Roen seconded the motion. The consent calendar was approved
unanimously with a roll call vote.

IV. Administrative Report

A. Public Hearing for the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District's proposed adoption of
a State Implementation Plan (Attainment Plan) for the 2008 Primary Federal 8-Hour Ozone
Standard.

Chair Sanchez opened the public hearing for the 2008 Primary Federal 8-hour ozone
standard. There was no public comment. Sam Longmire reported that he had not received
any written comments. Chair Sanchez closed the public hearing.

There was a motion to adopt the State Implementation Plan by Supervisor Scofield.
Supervisor Huebner seconded the motion. The State Implementation Plan was
approved unanimously with a roll call vote.

B. Ratify the 3@ Amendment to the Agreement between the California Air Resources Board and
the District for additional Wood Smoke Reduction Program (woodstove changeout) Funding
($45,000).

Supervisor Roen made a motion to approve and ratify amendment #3 of the agreement
between Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District and the California Air Pollution
Control Officers Association for increased funding for the Woodsmoke Reduction Program.
Supervisor Thrall seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with a roll call
vote.

C. Quarterly Budget Report for FY 2018-2019 (First Quarter)
Supervisor Roen made a motion to approve the First Quarter Budget Report. Supervisor Huebner
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with a roll call vote.
V. Directors Report

A. Status on Portola PM2.5 Nonattainment Area

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA \ D



Julie Ruiz gave an update on the status of the Portola woodstove changeout program. The District has
received 344 applications and completed 260 installations. She also explained that she has begun
implementing the school flag program and will begin a voluntary woodstove curtailment program this fall.

B. Woodsmoke Reduction Program
Sam Longmire gave an update on the woodsmoke reduction program for the Board.

C. Status of Carl Moyer Grant Applicants
Gretchen Bennitt gave an update on the Carl Moyer Grant Applicants.

VL. Concerns of the Board

Supervisor Roen informed the Board that the Plumas Unified School District received funding to
purchase 2 electric school buses at an approximate cost of $800,000 each. These buses will be utilized
in Sierra County as well as Plumas County.

VI. Schedule next Meeting — Supervisor Thrall made a motion to cancel the scheduled
November 26, 2018 Board meeting due to conflicts with other Board Members’ attendance ata CSAC
meeting scheduled for the same timeframe. Supervisor Roen seconded the motion. The motion was
approved unanimously with a roll call vote.

Vill. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 2:30 P.M.

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA

|



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda Item: lil.D

Agenda Description: Authorization for Signing Nevada County Auditor Controller's
Warrant Request Signatures for 2019

Issues: Annual approval of the warrant request signature form is required by the
Nevada County Auditor-Controller's office no later than January 31, 2019 to ensure
continual processing of payment requests.

The District is requesting that the Board authorize the Chair and APCO to sign the
warrant request signature form and submit it to the office prior to January 31, 2019.

Requested Action:

1. Authorize Chair and APCO to sign Authorized Signature Form for Warrant Requests
for 2019 and submit to Nevada County Auditor/Controller’s office prior to the January 31
deadline.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:

1. Authorized Signature Form for Warrant Requests for 2019

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA

17



NEVADA COUNTY AUDITOR CONTROLLER'S OFFICE

Please provide the Nevada County Auditor-Controller's olfice with the following information:

DistrictCommission:

Location:

Mailing Address:

Telephone #:

Main Email Address:

District Board/Commission Memboers
NAME & TITLE

ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER & EMAIL ADDRESS

Signatures of persons authorized to request payments.

NAME & TITLE

ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER & EMAIL. ADDRESS

Signature

Signature

Signature

Signature

The above information is correct and has been approved by the District Board/Commission meeting on

Date

Chairman Date

A minimum of two authorized signatures are required on all payment requests.

At at least one signatures shall be a Board/Commission Member

The District Board must approve all claims for payment prior to submittal,

Additonal documentation as may be required by law or restrictions placed by this office

When changes occur within your District/Commission, please submit an updated form. The above authorization automatically
expires on January 31, of each year and must be replaced by a new authorization before January 31, to ensure

continual processing of payment requests.

13



NORTHIRN SHERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda ltem: Iil.E

Agenda Description: Solicitation for Application to Receive Funding From the Carl
Moyer Memorial Program (Fiscal Year 2018/2019 - Year 21) Funds

Issues:

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) has allocated funding for a grant award of
$200,000 to the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District for the Carl Moyer
Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment Program. These funds will be utilized to
reduce emissions from heavy duty diesel engines throughout the entire district. CARB
has requested that in order to receive the funds, the District must submit a signed
resolution and application by January 31, 2019.

Requested Action:

If deemed appropriate, approve the FY 2018-2019 Application for Carl Moyer Program
Funds (Year 21). And authorize the Chair to sign Resolution 2019-01.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:

1. Resolution # 2019-01

2. Application to Receive Funding from the Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards
Attainment Program Fiscal Year 2018/2019 (Year 21) funds

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA

4



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION #2019-01

In the Matter of Accepting FY 2018-19 CARL MOYER MEMORIAL AIR QUALITY STANDARDS
ATTAINMENT PROGRAM (HEAVY-DUTY LOW EMISSION VEHICLE INCENTIVE PROGRAM)
FUNDS

Whereas, California Health and Safety Code section 44275-44299.2 authorize the California Air
Resources Board (ARB) to allocate Carl Moyer Program (CMP) funds to local air districts to provide
financial incentives to both the public and private sectors to implement eligible projects to reduce
emissions from on-road, marine, locomotive, agricultural and off-road engines;

Whereas, the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (District) has successfully implemented
Carl Moyer Program projects in past years to reduce emissions and improve air quality in the Mountain
Counties Air Basin and seeks to continue to reduce emissions from diesel engines through clean air
projects;

Whereas, the District may be invited to accept Carl Moyer Program funds from other districts through
an inter-district transfer;

Whereas, the District is applying for funding from the ARB “Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards
Attainment Program”, twenty-first round of funding (FY 2018-19),

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District does
hereby approve the District's continued participation in the Carl Moyer Program, and the acceptance of
funds allocated and awarded to the District for eligible projects and program administration each year,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of CMP grant agreements; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District will comply with
Carl Moyer Program requirements as specified in 44275 through 33299.2 of the Health and Safety
Code, the applicable CMP guidelines, and the District's CMP Policies and Procedures:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Officer is authorized to execute on behalf of the
District grant agreements with ARB, and all other necessary documents to implement and carry out the
purposes of this resolution.

On a motion by Supervisor , and seconded by Supervisor
, the foregoing resolution was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of
the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District at a regular meeting held on January 28, 2019, by
the following roll call vote:

Ayes:

Noes:

Absent:

Abstaining:

Approve:

Chair of Board

Attest:
Clerk of the Board/APCO




STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
CALIFORNIA AIR RESOURCES BOARD
MSCD/ITAB/IOS-99 (REV 11/18)

Attachment 2

CARL MOYER PROGRAM
FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 (YEAR 21) APPLICATION
Application must be received by CARB by January 31, 2019

1. APPLICANT DISTRICT

District Name  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
Street Address 200 Litton Drive Suite 320
City/Zip Code  Grass Valley/95945

Contact Person Gretchen Bennitt
Phone 530 274-9360 X 102 E-mail Address  gretchen@myairdistrict.com

2. CARL MOYER PROGRAM FUNDING REQUEST
Check one box and enter amount, if applicable. District requests:

O

(]

(]

Tentative allocation (“Total Allocation” amount from Attachment 1), or greater amount
shown below if available:
$

Minimum allocation of $200,000 (no match required).

Minimum allocation and authorizes the funds be designated to the Rural District Assistance
Program (RAP) for these years. (Please circle years that apply.)

Current Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 Year 25

Tentative allocation and authorizes the funds be designated to a lead air district for these
years. (Please circle years that apply.)

Current Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 Year 25
(Please specify lead district.)

No Carl Moyer Program funds. District declines all funding for Year 21.

3. DISTRICT MATCHING FUNDS (15% of Funding Request, for applications over $200,000)

Total District Match: $
Specify match funding by source and amount:
$
Source of Funding
$
Source of Funding
$
Source of Funding
(a) Match Funds Subtotal: $
(b) Estimated In-kind Administration: $
(Up to 15% of Total District Match)
Page 1 of 2



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
CALIFORNIA AIR RESOURCES BOARD
MSCD/ITABNOS-99 (REV 11/18)

4. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

Check box and enter percentage if District requests a program administration grant
percentage lower than the 6.25% or 12.5% allowed under statute (H&SC § 44299.1).

OO The District requests program administration funds be included in this grant
at___ percent of the total grant, a lower portion than allowed by statute.
5. BOARD RESOLUTION
Check one box and complete the date if applicable.

[ This application has been duly approved and authorized by the District governing
board, as specified in the attached resolution.
This application is scheduled to go before the District board on January 28, 2019

Date
6. DISTRICT CONTACT INFORMATION Please complete items (a) - (d):

(a) District Air Pollution Phone Email Address
Control Officer

Gretchen Bennitt |530 274-9360 |gretchen@myairdistrict.com

(b) District Carl Moyer Program Phone Email Address
Manager

Joe Fish |530 274-9360 | joe@myairdistrict.com

(c) District Mailing Address:

200 Litton Drive, Suite 320
Grass Valley, CA 95945

(d) District Phone number: 530 274-9360

7. DISTRICT APCO/EO APPROVED SIGNATURE

To the best of my knowledge and belief, the information in this application is true and correct.
Unless my district has declined or designated these grant funds, an up-to-date Carl Moyer
Program District Policies and Procedures Manual, based on current Carl Moyer Program
Gundellnes IS malntalne_gj at the District's office.

/
/1‘7)6’ /(J(/ /7/’jﬂ/ 7 November 30, 2018
S’gnature of Air-Pollution Contf’ol Officer Date

Please e-mail signed application by January 31, 2019 to:
Sibyl.Britton@arb.ca.gov.

Page 2 of 2 \F



NORTHIERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda ltem: IIL.F
Agenda Description: Monthly Budget Report - December 2018

Issues: Attached is the Operating Budget (Budgeted Vs. Actuals) for the period ending
December 31, 2018

Requested Action:
1. Review, Discuss and Approve the December 31, 2018 Budget Report
ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED

Attachments:
1. Budget Report for December 31, 2018

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA

18



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Operating Budget vs Actuals
Period Ending December 31, 2018

Resource Report
Operating (Fund 6774) End Balance Qtr2 $ 775,027
Operating (Payroll) End Balance Qtr2 $ 103,604
Operating (GovPay) End Balance Qtr2 $ 50,880
All Operating Accounts Cash Total $ 929,511
[Revenue
Budget Actuals to
Account # Description 2018-2019 12/31/18
10-4002 Fees, Permit to Operate 30,000 3,976
10-4004 Fees, Vapor Recovery 20,000 8,105
10-4005 Fees, Variance Application 500 325
10-4006 Fees, Source Test 2,000 1,932
10-4007 Fees, Prescribed Burning 25,000 19,067
10-4008 Fees, Woodstove Inspections 2,000 467
10-4010 Fees, Title V, Fed Op Permit 65,000 393
10-4013 Fees, Fire Dept Response 1,500 -
10-4100 Penalties, Permitted Source 10,000 -
10-4101 Penalties, Open Burning 2,500 -
10-4201 Gov't Funding, State Subvention 137,600 -
10-4202 Gov't Funding, Subvention Supplemental 3,500 -
10-4203 Gov't Funding, County Contribution 58,565 -
10-4204 Gov't Funding, EPA Monitoring 59,500 59,500
10-4205 Gov't Funding, EPA Monitoring Supplemental - 9,500
10-4206 Gov't Funding, AB 2766 DMV Fees 360,000 114,851
10-4207 Gov't Funding, PERP Pass thru 18,000 22,213
10-4208 Gov't Funding, AB 923 Operating 3,125 889
10-4209 Gov't Funding, EPA Target, Admin Fee 55,000 13,740
10-4210 Gov't Funding, AB 617 - -
10-4211 Gov't Funding, AB 197 18,267 -
10-4215 Carl Moyer, Admin Fee 25,000 31,667
10-4220 WRP, Admin Fee 29,250 -
10-4303 Other Income, Rules, Copies, Subscr. 100 -
10-4310 Other Income, Interest Earned 5,000 7,622
Revenue Total: $ 931,407 $ 294,248
Expenditures Salaries and Benefits (Object Level)
Budget Actuals to
Account # Description 2018-2019 12/31//18
10-5002 Permanent Salaries 391,347 177,727
10-5003 Overtime 1,000 -
10-5011 Medicare/FICA 5,000 2,601
10-5013 CA State Unemployment 550 28
10-5015 Workers' Comp Insurance 7,100 -
10-5016 PERS Health Insurance Active Employees 28,800 8,030
10-5017 PERS Health Insurance Retired Employees 28,800 13,176
10-5019 Dental/Vision Care 6,250 3,281
10-5020/5023 PERS Retirement (ER & EE Paid) 62,000 25,157
10-5022/5024 PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability 53,000 38,640
Salaries and Benefits Total: $ 583847 $ 268,639

1/4/2019, FY1819 Q1 Board Meeting Oct or Nov

\9



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
Operating Budget vs Actuals

Period Ending December 31, 2018

Expenditures Services and Supplies (Object Level)
Budget Actuals to

Account # Description 2018-2019 12/31//18

10-5201 PM Monitoring Expenses (Supplies and Lab Rent) 15,000 6,947
10-5202 Office Supplies 4,000 2,788
10-5203 References, Subscriptions 450 76
10-5204 Postage, Shipping 1,000 905
10-5205 Memberships 3,000 2,791
10-5206 Ozone Monitoring 19
10-5251 Communications 15,000 8,083
10-5253 Rent, Structures - Grass Valley (including PM2.5) 32,040 19,782
10-5254 Rent, Structures - Portola 6,000 3,500
10-5255 Utilities, Grass Valley 3,000 1,397
10-5256 Utilities, Portola 1,000 461
10-5258 Liability Insurance 8,000 9,256
10-5259 Legal Notices, Public 500 179
10-5301 Information Technology 5,000 1,405
10-5303 Maintenance: Office Equipment 500 -

10-5305 Maintenance: Vehicles 3,000 1,833
10-5311 Profession Services: Legal 6,000 1,050
10-5312 Profession Services: Office Assistance 6,000 6,492
10-5313 Profession Services: Accounting iNevada Gounty. Accountant, and ADP) 6,000 12,897
10-5314 Profession Services: Financial Auditor 12,000 10,400
10-5315 Profession Services: Board 5,000 1,800
10-5316 Profession Services: Hearings 50
10-5351 Training, Tuition 1,500 925
10-5352 Travel 3,000 4,960
10-5353 Gasoline 5,000 1,611
10-5354 Private Car Mileage 500 1,232
10-5390 Miscellaneous 1,000 200

Services and Supplies Total: § 143490 $ 101,040

Expenditures Pass-thru Funds / Internal Programs / Contributions to Other Agencies (Object Level)

Budget Actuals to
Account # Description 2018-2019 12/31//118
10-5401 Air Monitoring Program
10-5402 Alternate Commute Program 750
10-5404 ARB: AB 2588 Fees 1,400
10-5405 Public Education Program 5,000
10-5406 Fire Dept Response Reimbursement 1,500

Contribution to Other Agencies / Internal Grants Total: $ 8,650 | $ o

Expenditures Fixed Asset Purchases (Object Level)
Budget Actuals to

Account # Description 2018-2019 12/31/118

10-5601 Office Equipment (2 (2 computers @$2,000 each) 4,000

10-5602 Field Equipment (lixed assets - over $1,000) 1,000

10-5605 EPA Supplemental Monitoring 18,053 7,625
Fixed Asset Purchases Total: $ 23,053 7,625

Total Expenditures

Salaries and Benefits (Object Level) 583,847 268,639

Services and Supplies (Object Level) 143,490 101,040

Pass-thru Funds / Intemal Programs / Contributions to Other Agencias (Obiect Level) 8,650 -

Fixed Asset Purchases (Object Level) 23,053 7,625

Expenditure Total: $§ 759,040 $ 377,305

1/4/2019, FY1819 Q1 Board Meeting Oct or Nov



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
Operating Budget vs Actuals

Period Ending December 31, 2018

Budget Actuals to
Account # Description 2018-2019 | 12/31//18
20-4500 Govt. Funding, AB 2766 DMV Fees (60% for District Admin) 240,000 114,374
20-4505 Govt. Funding. AB923 (6.25% for district admin) 50,000 25,234
20-4518 Govt. Funding. Carl Moyer HD Diesel  (12.5% for district admin) 175,000 230.089
20-4535 Govt. Funding. WRP (~10% for district admin) 292,500 157,500
20-4536 WRP interest 1,000 -
20-4541 Nox Reduction Measure (NRM) 70,212 -
20-4538 AB 617 20,183 20,183
20-4539 AB 617 Interest 100 -
20-4529 Govt. Funding, EPA Target Grant for Portola 398.400 52.800
20-4600 Other Income, Interest, Restricted 1,000 10,197
_ Restricted Budget, Revenue Total: $1,248,395 610,377 |

lRestricted Budget, Eernditures
Budget Actuals to

Account # Description 2018-2019 § 12/31//18
20-5420 Nevada County Library, (AB2016-02, $20,600) 20,600 -
20 Incorporated Senior Citizens of Sierra County (AB2017-01) 5,853 1,463
20-5427 NevCo Library, Chicago Park Kiosk (AB2014-09, $33,455) 21,207 -
20- Nevada County Superior Court (AB2017-05) 47,835 -
20- Town of Truckee (AB 2017-06) 40,000 -
20-5425 Nevada County Library (AB2015-05, 25,000) 25,000 -
20-5426 Nevada County Library (AB2015-06, 15,500) 11,566 -
20- Plumas County Public Works (AB2017-02) 36,338 -
20-5440 Portola PM Mitigation(AB2015-08, 33,211 plus 5499 transferred from 588-200-39 28,054 500
20-5442 Portola MOU (AB2016-08) 26,932 1.229
20-5401 AB2766 Planned Expenditure of all counties (FY 18/19) 219,134 48,103
20-5406 Carl Moyer 176,223 164,136
20-5409 AB 923 220,800
20-5410 EPA Target Grant for Portola 398,400 112,258
20-5414 Woodsmoke Reduction Program (WRP) 292,500 300,250
20-5417 Non reduction Measure (NRM) 70,212 -
20-5415 AB 617 20,183 -
20-5413 H&S Mitigation Fund _ 180,000 43,200

Restricted Budg_et, Exgenditures Totals: 1,840,837 671,139

1/4/2019, FY1819 Q1 Board Meeting Oct or Nov

R\



1:29 PM
01/04/19

Cash Basis

Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
Profit & Loss RESTRICTED Budget vs. Actual

July through December 2018

Jul - Doc 18 Budget $ Ovor Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expenso
Income
20-4500 - AB 2766 (all counlies)
20-4502 - AB2768 Novada County 91,285 92 000 21,285 12 1000%%
20-430) - AB2766 Plumas County 21,249 48 0.00 21,249 48 100 0%
20-4504 - AB2766 Slerra County 1,039 36 000 1,839 56 100 0%
20-4500 - AB 2766 (all countios) - Other 000 240,000.00 240,000 00 00%
Tolal 20-4500 - AB 2766 (all countlas) 114,374 16 240,000.00 125 625 04 A7.7%
20-4505 - AB 923 2523274 50 000.00 24.766 26 50.5%
20-4518 - Cart Moyer
20-4519 - Carl Moyer Inferest 0.00 1.000.00 1,000.00 0
20-4618  Carl Moyer - Other 0.000.06 000 00 65.006./0 101 5
Total 20-4518 - Carl Moyer 230,088.68 178,000.00 54.088.60 120,7%
20-4525  TIMBER
20-4526 - TIMBER Interest 0.00 0.00 000 0o
Totat 20-4525 - TIMBER 000 0.00 000 0.0%
20-4529 . Gov Fund EPA Target Grnt -Porio 5279579 8,400.00 45.600.21 13.3%
20-453S - Woodsmoke Reduction Program
20-4538 - Intoresi-Woodsmoke Reduce Prog 000 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.09%
20-4535 - Wi duction Progl - Other 157.500.00 92,500.00 135,000.00 53.8%
Total 20-4535 - Woodsmoko Reduction Program 157.500.00 293,500.00 136,000.00 53.7%
20-4538 - AB617-CAPP/Comm Alr Protection
20-4539 - ABB17 aka CAPP Interest 000 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
20-4538 - AB617-CAPP/Comm Alr Protection - Othor 20,183.00 20.183.00 0.00 100.0%
Tolal 20-4538 - AB617-CAPP/Comm Alr Protection 2018300 20,283.00 -100.00 99.5%
20-4541 . Nox Reduction Measure Rev 0.00 70,212.00 -70,212.00 0.0%
20-4800 - Interost Earnod - Restricted 10,197.47 0.00 10,197.47 100.0%
Total Income 6810.377.02 1,248,395.00 -638,017.98 48.9%
Gross Profit 610.277.02 1,248,395.00 638.017.98 40.9%
Expense
20-5400 - Grantees Summary Only
20-5401 - AB2766 Restricted
20-5402 - AB2766 - Nevada County
20-5420 - 2016-02 Library -AB2766 NC 000 20,600.00 -20 600.00 0.0%
20-5421 - 2016-03 HansenBros - AB2766 NC 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5423 - 2015-01 NSAQMD - AB2766 NC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5425 - 2013-05 Library - AB2768 NC 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
20-5426 . 2015-06 Library - AB2766 NC 0.00 11,568.00 11,566.00 0.0%
20-5427 - 2014-09 Library - AB2766 NC 0.00 21,207.00 +21,207.00 0.0%
20-5429 - 2016-05 SupseriorCoun - AB2766 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5430 . 2016-08 TownofTrucke - AB2766 N 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5402 - AB2766 - Nevada County - Other 48,102.92 87,835.00 -39,732.08 54.8%
Total 20-5402 - AB2766 - Nevada County 48,102 92 166,208.00 -118,105.08 26.9%
20-5403 - AB2766 - Piumas County
20-5440 - 2015-08 Portota PM Nonattainmen 499 52 28,054.00 -27 554.48 1.8%
20-5442 - 2016-08 Portola MOU- AB2766 1,228.50 26,932.00 -25,703.50 4.6%
20-5403 - AB2766 - Plumas County - Other 0.00 36,338.00 -36,338.00 0.0%
Total 20-5403 . AB2766 - Plumas County 1,728.02 91,324.00 -89.595.98 1.9%
20-5404 - AB2766 - Sierra County
20-5450 - 2016-01 incSeniorCit - AB2766 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5404 - AB2766 - Slerra County - Other 1,463.26 5,853.00 -4,388.76 25.0%
Tota$ 20-5404 - AB2766 - Sierra County 1,463.25 5,853.00 -4,389.75 25.0%
20-5401 - AB2766 Restricted - Other 0.00 219,134.00 -219,134.00 0.0%
Total 20-5401 - AB2766 Restricted 51.284.19 482,619.00 -431.224.81 10.6%
20-5406 - Carl Moyer - Restricted
20-5475 . CM Prop 40 0.00 176,223.00 -178.223.00 0.0%
20-5406 - Carl Moyer - Restrictad - Other 164,136.41 0.00 164,136.41 100.0%
Total 20-5406 - Carl Moyer - Resiricted 164,136.41 176,223.00 -12,086.59 93.1%
20-5409 - AB 923 Restricted 0.00 220,800.00 -220.800.00 0.0%
20-5410 - EPA Target Grant - Restricted
20-5480 - EPA Target - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5410 - EPA Targe1 Grant - Restricted - Other 112.258.48 398.400.00 -286,141.52 28.2%
Total 20-5410 - EPA Target Grant - Restricted 112,258.48 398,400.00 -286,141.52 28.2%
20-5413 - H&S Mitigation Agres - Restrict 43.200.00 180,000.00 -136,800.00 24.0%
20-5414 . Woodsmoke Reduction Program 300,249.92 292,500.00 7.749.92 102.6%
20-5415 . AB617-CAPP/Comm Alr -YR 1 18/19 0.00 20,183.00 -20,163.00 0.0%
20-5417 . Nox Reduction Measure Exp 0.00 70.212.00 -70.212.00 0.0%
Totat 20-5400 - Grantees Summary Only 671,139.00 1,840,837.00 -1,169,698.00 38.5%
Total Expense 671,138.00 1.840,837.00 -1,169,698.00 36.5%
Net Ordinary Income -60,761.98 -592,442.00 531,680.02 10.3%
Net Income -60,761.98 -592,442.00 5§31,880.02 10.3%

Page 1

2PN



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda ltem: IV.A

Agenda Description: Status on Portola PM2.5 Nonattainment Area

Issues: The District will provide an update to the Board.

Requested Action: None requested

Attachments: none

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA

A2



NORTHL:RN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETING

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors
From: Gretchen Bennitt, Air Pollution Control Officer
Date: January 28, 2019

Agenda Item: IV.B

Agenda Description: EPA’s Notice of Proposed Rulemaking for Portola PM2.5
Attainment Plan

Issues: On December 18, 2018, the Environmental Protection Agency proposed the
approval of the Portola PM2.5 State Implementation Plan.

Requested Action: None, informational only

Attachments:
1. 40 CFR, part 52, Volume 83, No. 242, Tuesday, December 18, 2018

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA

24



64774 Federal Register/Vol.

(2) With the exception of demolition
crews, entry into or remaining in this
safety zone is prohibited.

(3) All vessels within 1his safety zone
when this section becomes elfective
must deparl the zone immediately.

(4) The Captain of the Port, North
Carolina can be reached through the
Coast Guard Sector North Carolina
Command Duty Officer, Wilmington,
North Carolina at telephone number
910-343-3882

(5) The Coast Guard and designated
security vessels enforcing the safety
zone can be contacted on VHF-FM
marine band radio channel 13 (165.65
MHz) and channel 16 (156.8 MIz).

(d) Enforcement. The U.S. Coast
Guard may be assisted in the patrol and
enforcement of the safety zone by
Federal, State, and local agencies.

(e) Enforcement Period. This
regulation will be enforced from
February 1, 2019 through February 29,
2020

(f) Public Notification. The Coast
Guard will notify the public of the
active enforcement times at least 48
hours in advance by transmitting
Broadcast Notice to Mariners via VHF—
FM marine channel 16.

Dated: December 7, 2018,
Bion B. Stewart,

Captain, U.S. Coast Guard Captain of the
Port North Carolina.

[FR Doc. 2018-27385 Filad 12-17-18; 8:45 am|
BILLING CODE 9110-04-P

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY

40 CFR Part 52

[EPA-R09-OAR-2017-0728; FRL-9988-01—
Region 9]

Approval and Promulgation of Air
Quality State implementation Plans;
California; Plumas County; Moderate
Area Plan for the 2012 PM. s NAAQS

AGENCY: Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA).
ACTION: Proposed rule.

SUMMARY: The Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) is proposing to approve
most elements of the state
implementation plan (SIP) revisions
submitted by California to address Clean
Air Act (CAA or “Act”) requirements for
the 2012 annual fine particulate matter
(PMa2 s) national ambient air quality
standards (NAAQS or “standards’) in
the Plumas County Moderate PMa s
nonattainment area (‘‘Portola
nonattainment area’’). The SIP revisions
are the ‘‘Portola Fine Particulate Matter

83, No. 242/ Tuesday, December 18,

(PM2 5) Attainment Plan” submitted on
February 28, 2017, and the 2019 and
2022 transportation conformity motor
vehicle emission budgets (“budgets’)
submitted on December 20, 2017. We
refer to these submittals collectively as
the "“Portola PMs 5 Plan” or “Plan.” The
EPA is proposing to approve the
following elements of the Portola PMa 5
Plan: The 2013 base year emissions
inventories, the reasonably available
control measure/reasonably available
control technology (RACM/RACT)
demonstration, the attainment
demonstration, the reasonable further
progress (RFP) demonstration, the
quantitative milestones, and the budgets
for 2019 and 2021. The EPA is not
proposing any action at this time on the
contingency measures in the Portola
PM; 5 Plan.

DATES: Any comments must arrive by
January 17, 2019.

ADDRESSES: Submit your comments,
identified by Docket ID No. EPA-R09-
OAR-2017-0728 at https://
www.regulations.gov, or via email to
John Ungvarsky, at Ungvarsky.john@
epa.gov. For comments submitted at
Regulations.gov, follow the online
instructions for submitting comments.
Once submitted, comments cannot be
removed or edited from Regulations.gov.
For either manner of submission, the
EPA may publish any comment received
to its public docket. Do not submit
electronically any information you
consider to be Confidential Business
Information (CBI) or other information
whose disclosure is restricted by statute.
Multimedia submissions (audio, video,
etc.) must be accompanied by a written
comment. The written comment is
considered the official comment and
should include discussion of all points
you wish to make. The EPA will
generally not consider comments or
comment contents located outside of the
primary submission (i.e., on the web,
cloud, or other file sharing system). For
additional submission methods, please
contact the person identified in the FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT section.
For the full EPA public comment policy,
information about CBI or multimedia
submissions, and general guidance on
making effective comments, please visit
http://www2.epa.gov/dockets/
commenting-epa-dockets.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: John
Ungvarsky, EPA Region IX, (415) 972—
3963, ungvarsky.john@epa.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Throughout this document, “we,
and “our” refer to the EPA.

Table of Contents

I. Background for Proposed Action

39 0 1

us

2018/ Proposed Rules

1L Clean Air Act Requircments for Moderate
PMa s Nonattainment Area Plans

111. Compleleness Review of the Porlola PMa «
Attainment Plan

1V. Review of the Portola PMa 5 Plan

V. Summary of Proposed Actions and
Request for Public Comment

VI. Statutory and Executive Order Reviews

1. Background for Proposed Action

Under section 109 of the CAA, the
EPA has established NAAQS for certain
pervasive air pollutants (referred to as
“criteria pollutants”) and conducts
periodic reviews of the NAAQS to
determine whether they should be
revised or whether new NAAQS should
be established. The EPA sets the
NAAQS for criteria pollutants at levels
required to protect public health and
welfare. Particulate matter is one of the
criteria pollutants for which the EPA
has established health-based standards.
The CAA requires states to submit
regulations that control particulate
matter emissions.

Particulate matter includes particles
with diameters Lhat are generally 2.5
microns or smaller (PMa.s) and particles
with diameters that are generally 10
microns or smaller (PM, o). It contributes
to effects that are harmful to human
health and the environment, including
premature mortality, aggravation of
respiratory and cardiovascular disease,
decreased lung function, visibility
impairment, and damage to vegetation
and ecosystems. Individuals particularly
sensitive to PMa s exposure include
older adults, people with hearl and lung
disease, and children.2 PM2 5 can be
emitted by sources directly into the
atmosphere as a solid or liquid particle
(“primary PMas” or ““direct PM2s"") or
can be formed in the atmosphere
(“secondary PM2s") as a result of
various chemical reactions among
precursor pollutants from sources such
as nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur dioxide
(SO»), volatile organic compounds
(VOC), and ammonia.?

On July 18, 1997, the EPA revised the
NAAQS for particulate matter to add
new standards for PMa2 5.4 The EPA
established primary and secondary
annual and 24-hour standards for PMa.s.
The annual standard was set at 15.0
micrograms per cubic meter (pug/m?)

1 For a given air pollutant, “primary” national
ambient air quality standards are those determined
by the EPA as requisite to protect the public health.
“Sncondary” standards are those determined by the
EPA as requisite to protect the public welfare from
any known or anticipated adverse effects associated
with the presence of such air pollutant in the
ambient air. CAA section 109(h).

278 FR 3086, 3088 (January 15, 2013).

3EPA, Air Quality Criteria for Particulate Matter,
No. EPA/600/P-99/002aF and EPA/600/P-99/
002bF, Octobor 2004,

462 FR 38652,

25



64775

Federal Register/Vol.

based on a 3-year average of annual
mean PMa2 s concentrations, and the 24-
hour (cdaily) standard was set at 65 pg/
m* based on the 3-year average of the
annual 98th percentile values of 24-hour
PMa.s concentrations at each
population-oriented monitor within an
area.®

On October 17, 2006, the EPA
retained the annual average NAAQS at
15 pg/m? but revised the level of the 24-
hour PMa2s NAAQS to 35 pg/m?* based
on a 3-year average of the annual 98th
percentile values of 24-hour
concentrations.¢7

On January 15, 2013, the EPA
finalized the 2012 PM, s NAAQS,
including a revision of the annual
standard to 12.0 pg/m* hased on a 3-year
average of annual mean PMa 5
concentrations, and retaining the
current 24-hour standard of 35 pg/m?
based on a 3-year average of the 98th
percentile of 24-hour concentrations.?

Following promulgation of a new or
revised NAAQS, the EPA is required by
CAA section 107(d) to designate areas
throughout the nation as atlaining or not
attaining the NAAQS. The EPA
designated and classified the Portola
area as ‘‘Moderate” nonattainment for
the 2012 annual PMa2 s standards based
on ambient monitoring data that showed
the area was above 12.0 ug/m? for the
2011-2013 monitoring period.” For the
2011-2013 period, the annual PMa2 s
design value for the Portola area was
12.8 pug/m3 based on monitored readings
al the 161 Nevada Sureel and 420
Gulling Street monitors.1?

The Portola PM» 5 nonattainment area
includes the City of Portola (“Portola”),
which has a population of
approximately 2,100 and is located at an
elevation of 4,890 feet in an
intermountain basin isolated by rugged
mountains. Portola averages 20 inches
of precipitation annually. From October
through March the nonattainment area
has very cold temperatures with the
average daily low temperature of
approximately 22 degrees Fahrenheit.
The combination of mountains, cold

5 The primary and secondary standards were set
at the same level for both the 24-hour and the
annual PMz s standards.

6 Under EPA regulations at 40 CFR part 50, the
primary and secondary 2006 24-hour PM2s NAAQS
are attained when the annual arithmetic mean
concentration, as determined in accordance with 40
CFR part 50, Appendix N, is less than or equal to
35 pg/m? at all relovant monitoring sites in the
subject area, averaged over a 3-year period.

771 FR 61144,

878 FR 3086.

#80 FR 2206 (January 15, 2015).

10 From 2000 through early 2013, the Portola
PM2.s monitoring site was located at 161 Nevada
Street. In 2013, the site was relocaled to 420 Gulling
Straet.

83, No. 242/Tuesday, December 18, 2018/ Proposed Rules

temperatures, and elevation can cause
inversions and impair PMa.s dispersion,
especially during the winter. For a
precise description of the geographic
boundaries of the Portola PMa 5
nonattainment area, see 40 CFR 81.305.

The local air district with primary
responsibility for developing a plan to
attain the 2012 annual PMa2s NAAQS in
this area is the Northern Sierra Air
Quality Management District (NSAQMD
or “District”). The District worked
cooperatively with the California Air
Resources Board (CARB) in preparing
the Portola PMa» 5 Plan. Under slate law,
authority for regulating sources under
state jurisdiction in the Portola
nonattainment area is split between the
District, which has responsibility for
regulating stationary and most area
sources, and CARB, which has
responsibility for regulating most
mobile sources.

IL. Clean Air Act Requirements for
Moderate PM2 s Nonattainment Area
Plans

With respect to the statutory
requirements for attainment plans for
the 2012 annual PM, s NAAQS, the
general CAA part D nonattainment area
planning requirements are found in
subpart 1, and the Moderate area
planning requirements specifically for
particulate matter are found in subpart
4.

The EPA has a longstanding general
guidance document that interprets the
1990 amendments to the CAA,
commonly referred to as the General
Preamble for the Implementation of
Title I of the Clean Air Act Amendments
of 1990 (“‘General Preamble’’).11 The
General Preamble addresses the
relationship between the subpart 1 and
the subpart 4 requirements and provides
recommendations to states for meeting
certain statutory requirements for
particulate matter attainment plans. As
explained in the General Preamble,
specific requirements applicable to
Moderate area attainment plan SIP
submissions for the particulate matter
NAAQS are set forth in subpart 4 of part
D, title I of the Act, but such SIP
submissions must also meet the general
attainment planning provisions in
subpart 1 of part D, title I of the Act, to
the extent these provisions “are not
otherwise subsumed by, or integrally
related to,” the more specific subpart 4
requirements,??

To implement the PM> s NAAQS, the
EPA has also promulgated the “Fine
Particle Matter National Ambient Air

11 General Preamble, 57 FR 13498 (April 16,
1992).
1257 FR 13538.

Quality Standard: State Implementation
Plan Requirements; Final Rule”
(hereinafter, the “PMa,. SIP
Requirements Rule”)." The PMas SIP
Requirements Rule provides additional
regulatory requirements and guidance
applicable to attainment plan
submissions for the PM» s NAAQS,
including the 2012 annual PM: 5
NAAQS at issue in this action.

The subpart 1 statutory requirements
for attainment plans include: (i) The
section 172(c)(1) requirements for
RACM/RACT and attainment
cdemonstrations; (ii) the section 172(c)(2)
requirement to demonstrate RFP; (iii)
the section 172(c)(3) requirement for
emissions inventories; (iv) the section
172(c)(5) requirements for a
nonattainment new source review
(NNSR) permitting program; and (v) the
section 172(c)(9) requirement for
contingency measures.

The more specific subpart 4 statutory
requirements for Moderate PM s
nonattainment areas include: (i) The
section 189(a)(1)(A) and 189(e) NNSR
permit program requirements; (ii) the
section 189(a)(1)(B) requirements for
attainment demonstrations; (iii) the
section 189(a)(1)(C) requirements for
RACM; and (iv) the section 189(c)
requirements for RFP and quantitative
milestones. Under subpart 4, states with
Moderate PM, s nonattainment areas
must provide for attainment in the area
as expeditiously as practicable but no
later than December 31, 2021, for the
2012 PMa s annual NAAQS. In addition,
under subpart 4, direct PM2 5 and all
precursors to the formation of PMa 5 are
subject to control unless the EPA
approves a demonstration from the State
establishing that a given precursor does
not contribute significantly to PMa s
levels that exceed the PM2s NAAQS in
the area.14

III. Completeness Review of the Portola
PM> 5 Attainment Plan

CAA sections 110(a)(1) and (2) and
110(1) require each state to provide
reasonable public notice and
opportunity for public hearing prior to
the adoption and submission of a SIP or
SIP revision to the EPA. To meet this
requirement, every SIP submission
should include evidence that adequate
public notice was given and an
opportunity for a public hearing was
provided consistent with the EPA’s
implementing regulations in 40 CFR
51.102.

Both the District and CARB satisfied
applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements for reasonable public

1381 FR 58010, August 24, 2016.
1440 CFR 51.1006 and 51.1009.

2



64776

Federal Register/Vol.

83, No. 242/Tuesday, December 18,

2018/ Proposed Rules

notice and hearing prior lo adoption anc
submission of the Portola PMa s Plan.
The District provided a 30-day public
comment period prior to its January 23,
2017 public hearing to adopt the main
SIP submission.?® CARB provided the
required public notice and opportunily
for public comment prior to its February
16, 2017 public hearing and adoption of
the main SIP submission."s CARB then
adopted its supplemental SIP
submission pertaining to 2019 and 2022
transportation conformity motor vehicle
emission budgets at its October 26, 2017
Board meeting after reasonable public
notice.!? Each submission includes
proof of publication of notices for the
respective public hearings. We find,
therefore, that the Portola PM; 5 Plan
meets the requirements for reasonable
notice and public hearings in CAA
sections 110(a) and 110(1).

CAA section 110(k)(1)(B) requires the
EPA to determine whether a SIP
submission is complete within 60 days
of receipt. This section also provides
that any plan that the EPA has not
affirmatively determined to be complete
or incomplete will become complete by
operation of law six months after the
date of submission. The EPA’s SIP
completeness criteria are found in 40
CFR part 51, appendix V. The February
28, 2017 and December 20, 2017 SIP
submissions became complete by
operation of law on August 28, 2017 and
June 20, 2018, respectively.

IV. Review of the Portola PM, 5 Plan
A. Emissions Inventory

1. Requirements for Emissions
Inventories

CAA section 172(c)(3) requires that
each SIP include a “comprehensive,
accurate, current inventory of actual

15 The District public: notice posted on its website
for January 23, 2017 public hearing (undated);
February 14, 2017 proof of publication from Plumas
County News of public notice for January 23, 2017
public hearing; December 14, 2016 proof of
publication from Feather Publishing Co., Inc. of
public notice that public notice for January 23, 2017
public hearing published in the Feather River
Bulletin, Indian Valley Record, and Portola
Reporter during the week beginning December 14,
2016; and NSAQMD Governing Board Resolution
2017-01, “In the Matter of Adopting the Portola
Fine Particulate Matter (PM-) Attainment Plan
(Portola Plan) as required by the Federal Clean Air
Act,” January 13, 2017,

16 CARB, Notice of evidence of listserve
publication, “arbcombo—Notice of Public Meeting
for Fobruary 16, 2017,” and “Notice of Public
Maeting to Consider the Approval of the Portola
PM: s State Implementation Plan,” both dated
January 13, 2017; CARB Board Resolution 17-2,
“Portala PM. s State Implementation Plan,”
February 16, 2017,

17 CARB Board Resolution 17-28, “Supplemental
Transportation Conformity Emissions Budgels for
the Portola Fine Particulate Matter (PM, s)
Attainment Plan,” Octobar 26, 2017,

emissions from all sources of the
relevant pollutant or pollutants in [the]
arca. . . ." By requiring an accounting
of aclual emissions from all sources of
the relevant pollutants in the area, this
section provides for the base year
inventory to include all emissions that
contribute to the formation of a
particular NAAQS pollutant. For the
2012 PM. 5 NAAQS, this includes
emissions of direct PMa 5 as well as the
main chemical precursors to the
formation of secondary PM, s: NOx,
S0», VOC, and ammonia. Primary PM, 5
includes condensable and filterable
particulate matter.

A state must include in its SIP
submission documentation explaining
how the emissions data were calculated.
In estimating mobile source emissions,
a state should use the latest emissions
models and planning assumptions
available at the time it develops the SIP
submission. States are also required to
use the EPA’s “Compilation of Air
Pollutant Emission Factors' (AP-42)18
road dust method for calculating re-
entrained road dust emissions from
paved roads.”® The latest EPA-approved
version of California’s mobile source
emission factor model is EMFAC2014.20

In addition to the base year inventory
submitted to meet the requirements of
CAA section 172(c)(3), the State must
also submit future “baseline
inventories” for the projected
attainment year and each RFP milestone
year, and any other year of significance
for meeting applicable CAA
requirements.2? By “‘baseline
inventories’ (also referred to as
“‘projected baseline inventories™), we
mean projected emissions inventories
for future years that account for, among
other things, the ongoing effects of
economic growth and adopted
emissions control requirements. The SIP
submission should include
documentation to explain how the state
calculated the emissions projections.

18 The EPA released an update to AP-42 in
January 2011 that revised the equation for
estimating paved road dust emissions based on an
updated data regression that included new emission
tosts results.

1976 FR 6328 (February 4, 2011).

20The EMFAC model {short for EMission FACtor)
is a computer model developed by CARB. The EPA
approved EMFAC2014 for use in SIP revisions and
transportation conformity at 80 FR 77337
{December 14, 2015).

2140 CFR 51.1007(a), 51.1008(b), and 51.1009(f);
see also U.S. EPA, “Emissions Inventory Guidance
for Implementation of Ozone [and Particulate
Matter] National Ambient Air Quality Standards
(NAAQS) and Regional Haze Regulations,”
available at http://www.epa.gov/sites/production/
files/2014-10/documents/2014revisedeiguidance_
0.pdf.

2. Emissions Inventory in the Portola
PMa.5 Plan

The Portola PM2 s nonattainment area
emissions inventory is typical ol a
small, high elevation mountain
community. There are no major
stationary sources or large industrial
sources (existing or anticipated) and
residential wood burning is a significant
source of direct PMas. A summary of the
planning emissions inventories for
direct PMa s and all PMa s precursors
(NOx, SOx, VOC, and ammonia) 22 for
the Portola PM3 5 nonattainment area is
found in section III. Detailed inventories
for the Portola PMa s nonattainment area
together with documentation for the
inventories are found in Appendix B of
the Plan. CARB and District staff
worked jointly to develop the emissions
inventory for the Portola PMa2 s
nonattainment area. The District worked
with operators of the three stationary
facilities in the nonattainment area to
develop the stationary source emissions
estimates.2* CARB staff developed the
emissions inventory for mobile sources,
both on-road and off-road.24 The District
and CARB shared responsibility for
developing estimates for the area
sources such as residential wood
burning and paved road dust.

The Plan includes annual average
emissions inventories for the 2013 base
year and estimated emissions for the
2019, 2021, and 2022 future baseline
years. Future baseline inventories are a
projection of the base year inventory
taking into account expected growth
trends for each source category and
emission reductions from control
measures adopted prior to January 1,
2013. CARB develops emissions
projections by applying growth and
contro] profiles to the base year
inventory.2s

Each inventory includes emissions
from stationary, area, on-road, and non-

22 The Portola PMa s Plan generally uses “sulfur
oxides™ or “SOx™ in reference to SO; as a precursor
to the formation of PMz.s. Wao use SOx and SO»
interchangeably throughout this notice.

23 CARB's facility search engine website shows
for 2016 in the Portola PMzs nonattainment area
there are no major stationary sources and only three
non-major stationary sources. Two of the non-major
sources reported zero particulate matter (PM)
emissions in 2016, and the third non-major source
(i.e., White Cap Ready Mix #1) reported 1.9 tons per
year of PM emissions. For more information see
https://wwiv.arb.ca.gov/app/emsinv/facinfo/
Jucinfo.php.

24 The EPA regulations refer to “nonroad”
vehicles and engines whereas California Air
Resources Board (CARB) regulations refer to "off-
road” vehicles and engines. These terms refer to the
same types of vehicles and engines, and for the
purposes of this action, we will be using CARB’s
chosen term, “off-road,” to refer to such vehicles
and engines.

35 Portola PM2 s Plan, Appendix B.



Federal Register/Vol. 83, No. 242/ Tues

road sources. The invenlories use
EMFAC2014 for estimating on-roacl
motor vehicle emissions. 26 Re-entrained
paved road dust emissions were
calculated using the EPA's AP—42 road
dusl methodology.??

Table 1 provides a summary of the
annual average inventories in tons per
day (tpd) of direct PM- 5 and PMa s
precursors for the base year of 2013.
These inventories provide the basis for
the control measure analysis and the

day, December 18, 2018/ Proposed Rules

64777

RFP and attainment demonstrations in
the Portola PMa 5 Plan. For a detailed
breakdown of the inventories, see
Appendix B, Tables 6-10 in the Portola
PMa. 5 Plan.

TABLE 1—PORTOLA ANNUAL AVERAGE EMISSIONS INVENTORY FOR DIRECT PM_ 5 AND PM2 s PRECURSORS FOR THE

2013 BASE YEAR (tpd)

Category Direct PM; 5 NOx SOx vOC Ammonia
Stationary SOUrCes ..........co...oooooovooooeo 0.007 0.002 0.000 0.016 0.018
Area Sources ..........o......... 0.468 0.048 0.015 0.661 0.142
On-Road Mobile Sources ... 0.005 0.181 0.0003 0.101 0.005
Off-Road Mobile Sources 0.011 0.273 0.0001 0.162 0.0001
TOMAIS ...t 0.490 0.504 0.016 0.940 0.149

Source: Portola PM; s Plan, Section HI, Table 3 (p. 24) and Appendix B, Tables 6-10.

3. The EPA’s Evaluation and Proposed
Action

The inventories in the Portola PM- s
Plan are based on the most current and
accurate information available to the
State and District at the time the Plan
and its inventories were being
developed in 2015 and 2016, including
the latest version of California’s mobile
source emissions model, EMFAC2014.
The inventories comprehensively
address all source categories in the
Portola PMa2 5 nonattainment area and
were developed consistent with the
EPA’s inventory guidance. For these
reasons, we are proposing to approve
the 2013 base year emissions inventory
in the Portola PM, 5 Plan as meeting the
requirements of CAA section 172(c)(3).
We are also proposing to find that the
projected baseline inventories in the
Plan provide an adequate basis for the
RACM, RFP, and attainment
demonstrations in the Portola PMa s
Plan.

B. PM> 5 Precursors

1. Precursor Requirements

The provisions of subpart 4 of part D,
title I of the CAA do not define the term
“precursor” for purposes of PMa, s, nor
do they explicitly require the control of
any specifically identified PM
precursor. The statutory definition of
“‘air pollutant” in CAA section 302(g),
however, provides that the term
“includes any precursors to the
formation of any air pollutant, to the
extent the Administrator has identified
such precursor or precursors for the
particular purpose for which the term
‘air pollutant’ is used.” The EPA has
identified SO., NOx, VOC, and

6 Portola PM: s Plan, Appendix B.
27]d.
2840 CFR 51.1006(a)(1).

ammonia as precursors to the formation
of PMa 5. Accordingly, the attainment
plan requirements of subpart 4 apply to
emissions of all four precursor
pollutants and direct PMa 5 from all
types of stationary, area, and mobile
sources, except as otherwise provided in
the Act (e.g., in CAA section 189(e)).
Section 189(e) of the Act requires that
the control requirements for major
stationary sources of direct PM,q (which
includes PMs s) also apply to major
stationary sources of PM,¢ precursors,
except where the Administrator
determines that such sources do not
contribute significantly to PM,, levels
that exceed the standard in the area.
Section 189(e) contains the only
expressed exception to the control
requirements under subpart 4 for
sources of PM; s precursor emissions.
Although section 189(e) explicitly
addresses only major stationary sources,
the EPA interprets the Act as
authorizing it also to determine, under
appropriate circumstances, that
regulation of specific PM, 5 precursors
from other sources in a given
nonattainment area is not necessary.
Under the PM, 5 SIP Requirements
Rule, a state may elect to submit to the
EPA a “comprehensive precursor
demonstration” for a specific
nonattainment area to show that
emissions of a particular precursor from
all existing sources located in the
nonattainment area do not contribute
significantly to PMa s levels that exceed
the standard in the area.28 Such a
comprehensive precursor demonstration
must include a concentration-based
contribution analysis (i.e., evaluation of
the contribution of a particular
precursor to PM; s levels in the area)

29]d.
T0EPA Office of Air Quality Planning and
Standards, “'PMa.s Precursor Demonstration

and may also include a sensitivity-based
contribution analysis (i.e., evaluation of
the sensitivity of PM, 5 levels in the area
to a decrease in emissions of the
precursor). If the EPA determines that
the contribution of the precursor to
PM: 5 levels in the area is not significant
and approves the demonstration, the
state is not required to control emissions
of the relevant precursor from existing
sources in the current attainment plan.29
The EPA issued the draft PMa s
Precursor Demonstration Guidance
(“*Draft Guidance”) to provide
recommendations to states for
appropriate precursor demonstrations in
nonattainment plan SIP submissions. 0
For the annual PM2 s NAAQS, section
2.2 of the Draft Guidance recommends
use of 0.2 pg/m? as a threshold below
which ambient air quality impacts could
be considered “insignificant,” i.e.,
impacts that do not “contribute” to
PM: s concentrations that exceed the
NAAQS. When considering whether a
precursor contributes significantly to
PM. 5 levels which exceed the NAAQS
in the area, a state may also consider
additional factors based on the facts and
circumstances of the area. As to air
quality impacts that exceed the 0.2 pg/
m? contribution threshold, states may
provide additional support for a
conclusion that a particular precursor
does not contribute significantly to
ambient PM: 5 levels that exceed the
NAAQS. States may consider
information such as the amount by
which the impacts exceed the
recommended contribution threshold,
the severity of nonattainment at relevant
monitors and/or grid cell locations in
the area, anticipated growth or loss of
sources, analyses of speciation data and

Guidanece,” EPA-454/P-16-001, November 17,
2016 draft, available at https://www.epa.gov/ipm-
pollution/draft-pm25-precursor-demonstration-
guidance.

25



64778

Federal Register/Vol.

procursor emission inventories, and air
quality trends. !

2. Precursor Demonstration in the Plan

Section V.C. of the Plan contains the
State’s demonstration that emissions of
SOx, NOx, ammonia, and VOC from all
existing sources in the nonattainment
arca do not contribute significantly to
PMa s levels that exceed the NAAQS.
The demonstration includes a
concentration-hased portion, a
sensitivity-based portion, and additional
relevant information. The
concentration-based portion is
summarized in Table 8 of the Plan,
based on 2013-2014 species
composition data, and used to represent
the base year design value used as the
starting point in the rollback attainment
demonstration as described in section
1V.E.32 All four precursors together
account for 6.3% of the 2013 PMas
design value. Organic matter and
elemental carbon, mainly from wood
burning, are the dominant contributors
and account for 89% of the 2013 design
value.

For VOC emissions, the
corresponding ambient PMa s
component is anthropogenic Secondary
Organic Aerosol (SOA). Based on
comparison to ambient SOA
concentrations per ton of total VOC
emissions at other California locations,
the State estimated Portola SOA
concentrations of 0.02-0.05 pg/m3. The
State also noted that seasonal organic
carbon (OC) measurements at Portola
are indistinguishable from background
levels during the summer. Because SOA
is a subset of OC, and summer is when
SOA is highest due to the warmer
temperatures, the State found that
Portola’s SOA is comparable to the 0.06
pg/m3 observed at nearby background
interagency monitoring of protected
visual environments (IMPROVE) sites 39
and well below the 0.2 pg/m?
contribution threshold.

The ambient species concentrations
corresponding to SOx, NOx, and
ammonia were 0.41, 0.46, and 0.48 pg/
m?, respectively. Because these are all
above the recommended contribution
threshold of 0.2 pg/m3, the State
conducted a follow-up sensitivity-based
analysis. The sensitivity-based portion
of the precursor demonstration used a
variant of the rollback attainment

s11d. at 17.

32 Portola PM: s Plan, 51.

33 IMPROVE is a monitoring program managed by
the EPA and other federal and state agoncies to
assess visibility and acrosol conditions including
PM_: s species in Class | areas such as national parks.
For more information, go to http://
vista.cira.colostate.edu/Improve/reconstructed-fine-
mass/.

83, No. 242/ Tuesday, December 18,

demonstration based on Positive Matrix
Factorization (PMF) as described in
section 1V.B.2 of this notice.** The
rollback model scales PMz s component
concenlrations (excluding background)
according to changes in emissions.
Ammonium nitrate was scaled
proportional to NOx emissions;
ammonium sulfate was scaled
proportional to SOx emissions; and
ammonium was scaled proportional to
ammonia emissions. These were all on
a conservative one-to-one basis; that is,
a 1% emission change leads toa 1%
concentration change. The sensitivity
emission reductions modeled were
10%, 25%, 30%, 50%, and 70%.

As in the attainment demonstration,
the precursor demonstration used the
estimated 2021 design value. The PMa s
effect of both the sensitivity reductions
and the yearly reductions were
combined to estimate the effect on the
design value. Table 9 of the Plan lists
the PM: 5 design values resulting from a
10 to 70% reduction in emissions of
each pollutant.?s For SOx and ammonia,
the reductions have a negligible impact
on the attainment year design value.
The design values listed for the 70%
emission reduction show PM; 5
responses of 0.09 and 0.11 pg/m* for
SOy and ammonia respectively, both
well below the recommended
contribution threshold.

For NOx sensitivity, the Plan includes
a discussion of the ambient response to
a 30% reduction, 0.16 pg/m3, which is
below the 0.2 pg/m? contribution
threshold. However, the given design
values for 50% and 70% reductions
show responses of 0.26 pg/m? and 0.39
pg/m3 respectively, which are above the
recommended contribution threshold.

Beyond the concentration-based and
sensitivity-based analyses, the Plan
provides several pieces of additional
information to help assess the
significance of NOx as a PMa5
precursor. Table 7 of the Plan shows
that NOx emissions in the Portola
nonattainment area, estimated at 0.5
tpd, are far smaller than the NOx
emissions in several other California
counties, which range from 46.5 to
104.0 tpd.?% The Plan also shows that
90% of the NOx emisstons in Portola are
from mobile sources, which already are
stringently controlled; PMa s
concentrations would be not be

34 PMF is a multivariate source apportionment
method that attributes PM; s observed
concentrations to sources through statistical and
meteorological interpretation of data. PMF is one of
saveral EPA recommended receptor modeling
methods for understanding of source impacts on
ambinnt PMz s levels,

35 Portola PM.s Plan, 53.

3 d, at 47.

2018/ Proposed Rules

sensilive to realistic additional control
on these sources.

Supporting supplemental data from
CARB shows trends in emissions and
species concentrations during 2002—
2016.%7 The data are for the Mountain
Counties Air Basin, which comprises
Plumas County and eight other similar
counties that are also largely rural,
wooded areas spanning the foothills to
the crest of the Sierra Nevada
monntains. Ammonia emissions during
this period were essentially constant,
but NOx and SOx emissions decreasec
by 46% and 67%, respectively. During
the same time span, nitrate and sulfate
concentrations decreased by 23% and
16%, respectively. Since nitrate and
sulfate were responding to NOx and
SOx emissions reductions, this suggests
that ammonium nitrate formation is
NOx-limited and ammonium sulfate is
SOx-limited, rather than either being
ammonia-limited. These observations
support a finding that ammonia is an
insignificant PM, s precursor, for which
controls would be of little benefit.

Based on its evaluations, the State
concluded that additional controls on
PM, s precursors would have an
insignificant effect on PMa s
concentrations, and that precursors
need not be included in the controls
analysis.

3. The EPA’s Evaluation and Proposed
Action

The comprehensive precursor
demonstration provided in the Plan
meets the requirements of 40 CFR
51.1006(a)(1) and is consistent with the
EPA’s recommendations in the Draft
Guidance. The demonstration contains a
concentration-based contribution
analysis for VOC and sensitivity-based
contribution analyses for NOx, SOx, and
ammonia, together with additional
information about the Portola area, as
recommended in the Draft Guidance
(e.g., emission inventory and ambient
PM. s composition data).

For the SO, concentration-based
analysis, the Plan states that background
sulfate concentrations are 97% of the
0.41 pg/m* measured at Portola. The
remaining 3% of the sulfate, or 0.012
pg/m3, is attributable to Portola sources.
This 3% contribution from Portola
sources to PM, 5 levels above the
NAAQS is well below the EPA’s 0.2 pug/
m? contribution threshold.

For the VOC concentration analysis,
the Plan provides several estimates of
SOA at Portola. The estimates, which

37 Email with attachment (i.e., Spoecies
Trends.xlsx) dated Fehruary 13, 2018, from Kasia
Turkiowicz, CARB, to Scott Bohning and John
Ungvarsky, EPA.

27



Federal Register/Vol.

83, No. 242/Tuesday, December 18, 2018/ Proposed Rules

64779

can be considered “data analysis
techniques” as described in the Draft
Guidance, are appropriate for refining
SOA estimates from available
measurements and provide a convincing
case that VOCs do not contribute
significantly to PMz 5 levels that exceed
the NAAQS in the area.

For NOx, the Plan’s estimate for the
nitrate contribution and the
corresponding sensitivity to NOx
ractuctions may be unrealistically high.
The PMF modeling results estimated the
secondary nitrate contribution to be
5.1% of the total PM2 s, whereas the raw
chemical composition data estimated
only 3.3%.%% In addition, the
concentration-based analysis may have
overestimated nitrate concentrations
because it does not apply the sulfate,
adjusted nitrate, derived water, inferred
carbonaceous balance approach
(SANDWICH) 3¢ for reconciling the mass
from speciation measurements with that
from the Federal Reference Method
(FRM) used for design values. Because
the SANDWICH adjustment generally
reduces nitrate, due to nitrate losses
from FRM monitors, the precursor
demonstration in the Plan may be
overestimating the amount of nitrate
and the nitrate response to NOx
emission reductions. Thus, the
approach used in the Plan results in a
more conservative precursor
demonstration.

The sensitivity-based precursor
analysis relies on the same methodology
as the attainment demonstration,
including the very conservative
assumption that the ambient response to
NOx reductions is in a 1:1 ratio to the
emission change (on a percent basis).
The responses to SO, and ammonia
reductions were below the
recommended 0.2 pg/m?3 contribution
threshold, but the response to NOx was
above the threshold at 50% and 70%
reductions.

The Plan includes additional
information supporting a conclusion
that NOx emissions do not contribute
significantly to PM» s levels that exceed
the NAAQS in the area. The information
includes the small size of the NOx
emission inventory relative to other
areas and recognition that mobile
sources are already highly controlled.
These are indications that ambient PM, s
levels would not be sensitive to
additional NOx controls.

The EPA also considered two other
implications of the data provided with
the Plan or as a supplement. The
supplemental 2002-2016 emissions and
speciation trends can be used to derive

38 Plan, Figure 9, 20, and Table 8, 51.
3% Draft Guidanace, 23,

a response factor, the percent change in
nitrate concentration for each percent
change in NOx emissions. Because
ammonia emissions are constant, they
provide a reasonable factor to use as the
response to reductions of NOx in the
sensitivity analysis. Using 2002-2016
data results in a NOx response factor of
0.378. Using this in a variant of the
Plan’s NOx sensitivity analysis in place
of the 1:1 assumption, the EPA found
that the ambient PMas response o a
50% NOx reduction is 0.105 ug/m?, and
the response to a 70% reductlion is 0.147
pg/m3. Both of these are below the
EPA’s recommended contribution
threshold of 0.2 pg/m?. (The original
responses were 0.277 and 0.388 pg/m3.)
Since the years 2013-2016 were
somewhat anomalous, with some nitrate
increases, the EPA carried out the same
exercise using just 2002-2011 data,
which resulted in a NOx response factor
of 0.625. In turn, this results in a 50%
response of 0.173 pg/m? and a 70%
response of 0.243 pg/m3. The 70%
response is above but considerably
closer to the recommended 0.2 pg/m?
contribution threshold. When
considered in light of the additional
information discussed above, the 70%
response supports a conclusion that
NOx emissions do not contribute
significantly to PMa 5 levels that exceed
the NAAQS in the area.

A second implication of the data from
the Plan concerns the effect of a 70%
NOx reduction on the year that the
Portola area can attain the NAAQS.
Under the PMa s SIP Requirements Rule
at 40 CFR 51.1009(a)(4)(i), if a Moderate
PM: 5 nonattainment area, such as the
Portola area, can show that reducing
emission of a precursor is not necessary
for expeditious attainment of the
NAAQS and cannot advance attainment
by a year,40 then that precursor need not
be controlled for attainment purposes.
Even assuming a NOx reduction of 70%,
which is very large in comparison with
the historical reductions of about 6%
per year, and assuming an
unrealistically conservative 1:1 nitrate
response ratio, the resulting response is
0.388 pg/m3, which is less than the
average 0.41 ng/m? per year PM; 5
decrease seen during 2019-2021 in the
attainment demonstration. This
observation supports a conclusion that
controlling NOx is not necessary for
expeditious attainment of the NAAQS
because it would not advance the
attainment date by a year in the Portola
nonattainment area.

The EPA is proposing to approve the
State’s demonstration that emissions of
PMa, s precursors (i.e., SOx, NOx,

4081 FR 58010, 58020 (August 24, 2016).

ammonia, and VOC) from all existing
sources located in the nonattainment
area do not contribute significantly to
PMa s levels that exceed the standards in
the area. If the EPA finalizes this
proposal, the State and District would
not be required to control emissions of
these precursors from existing sources
in the Portola PMa 5 Plan for purposes of
the 2012 annual PM2 s NAAQS. The
State, District, and the EPA will
reoxamine this issue il the Portola area
fails to attain the NAAQS and EPA
reclassifies the area to Serious for the
2012 annual PM, s NAAQS.

C. Reasonably Available Control
Measures/Reasonably Available Control
Technology

1. Requirements for RACM/RACT

The general subpart 1 attainment plan
requirement for RACM and RACT is
described in CAA section 172(c)(1),
which requires that attainment plan
submissions ‘“‘provide for the
implementation of all reasonably
available control measures as
expeditiously as practicable (including
such reductions in emissions from
existing sources in the area as may be
obtained through the adoption, at a
minimum, of reasonably available
control technology)” and provide for
attainment of the NAAQS.

The attainment planning
requirements specific to PMa s under
subpart 4 likewise impose upon states
with nonattainment areas classified as
Moderate an obligation to develop
attainment plans that require RACM/
RACT on sources of direct PMa s and all
PMa 5 plan precursors. CAA section
189(a)(1)(C) requires that Moderate area
PM. s SIPs contain provisions to assure
that RACM/RACT are implemented no
later than 4 years after designation of
the area. The EPA reads CAA sections
172(c)(1) and 189(a)(1)(C) together to
require that attainment plans for
Moderate nonattainment areas provide
for the implementation of RACM and
RACT for existing sources of PMa.s and
those PMs s precursors subject to control
in the nonattainment area as
expeditiously as practicable but no later
than 4 years after designation.41

The PMa s SIP Requirements Rule
defines RACM as “any technologically
and economically feasible measure that
can be implemented in whole or in part
within 4 years after the effective date of
designation of a PMa s nonattainment
area and that achieves permanent and
enforceable reductions in direct PM2 s
emissions and/or PMs s plan precursor

41This interpretation is consistenl with guidance
provided in the General Preamble at 13540,

20



m'.,_,_.n

ea

la

dl

1



